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I.  Introduction

The Federal Trade Commission (“Commission”) has accepted from Grifols, S.A.
(“Grifols”) and Talecris Biotherapeutics Holdings Corp. (“Talecris”), subject to final approval,
an Agreement Containing Consent Orders (“Consent Agreement”) and Decision and Order, and
has issued a Complaint and the Order to Maintain Assets (“OMA”) contained in the Consent
Agreement.  The Consent Agreement is designed to remedy the anticompetitive effects resulting
from Grifols’ proposed acquisition of Talecris (the “Acquisition”).  Under the Consent
Agreement, Grifols will:  (i) divest the fractionation facility currently owned by Talecris in
Melville, New York, to Kedrion S.p.A. (“Kedrion”); (ii) divest plasma collection centers to
Kedrion; (iii) divest to Kedrion Talecris’ Koate DVI plasma-derived Factor VIII (“pdFVIII”)
business, including the Koate brand name, in the United States; and (iv) for a seven-year period,
manufacture immune globulin (“Ig”), albumin, and Koate for Kedrion to sell in the United
States.  

The proposed Consent Agreement has been placed on the public record for 30 days to
solicit comments from interested persons.  Comments received during this period will become
part of the public record.  After 30 days, the Commission will again review the proposed
Consent Agreement and will decide whether it should withdraw from the proposed Consent
Agreement, modify it, or make it final.

On June 6, 2010, Grifols entered into an agreement to acquire Talecris for approximately
$3.4 billion in cash and stock.  The Commission’s Complaint alleges that the Acquisition
violates Section 5 of the FTC Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 45, and if consummated, would
violate Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 18, and Section 5 of the FTC Act
by lessening competition in the U.S. markets for Ig, albumin, and pdFVIII (the “Relevant
Products”). 

II.  The Parties

Grifols is a public company, headquartered in Barcelona, Spain.  Its bioscience division
develops and manufactures human blood plasma-derived products with manufacturing facilities
in Barcelona and Los Angeles, California.  Grifols entered the U.S. market in 2002, when it
acquired the assets of a U.S. manufacturer, Alpha Therapeutics Corporation, and 42 plasma
collection centers from SeraCare.  Since then, Grifols has acquired additional plasma centers and
is now vertically integrated, making it the second largest plasma collector in the world.  Grifols
employs approximately 6,000 people worldwide and had global 2009 revenues of $1.3 billion.

Talecris is also a public company – owned in part by the private investment firm
Cerberus Capital Management, L.P. (“Cerberus”) – that specializes in the development,
manufacture, and worldwide sale of human blood plasma-derived products.  Talecris began its
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U.S. operations in 2005, when Cerberus acquired Bayer AG’s global plasma business and
Precision Pharma in the same year.  Talecris is headquartered in Research Triangle Park, North
Carolina, with additional regional headquarters in Canada and Germany.  Like Grifols, Talecris
is a vertically integrated company, owning numerous plasma collection centers, as well as
manufacturing facilities in Clayton, North Carolina, and Melville, New York.  It employs
approximately 5,000 people worldwide and had global 2009 revenues of approximately $1.5
billion. 

III.  Market Structure and Relevant Products

A. Relevant Geographic Market

The relevant geographic market in which to analyze the Acquisition’s effects is the
United States.  Plasma-derived products must be FDA-approved for sale in the United States,
which requires that these products be made solely from plasma collected in the United States in
FDA-approved collection centers and manufactured in FDA-approved plants.  Thus, plasma
products not approved for sale in the United States do not provide viable competitive alternatives
for U.S. consumers in the face of an increase in price for U.S. products. 

B. Relevant Product Markets

i. Ig

Ig is a plasma protein replacement therapy largely used to treat immune deficient
patients.  The relevant product market for Ig includes all brands, concentrations (i.e., 5% and
10%), formulations (i.e., liquid and lyophilized/powder), and means of administration (i.e.,
intravenous and subcutaneous).  Because intravenous Ig (“IVIG”) accounts for the
overwhelming majority of Ig sales in the United States, industry participants often refer to the Ig
market as the IVIG market.  Although IVIG is available in two concentrations (5% and 10%),
they are therapeutically equivalent.  The main difference is one of convenience:  a 10% IVIG
requires less volume, meaning treatment typically takes less time.  Ig has numerous FDA-
approved indications (e.g., primary immunodeficiencies and Chronic Inflammatory
Demyelinating Polyneuropathy), and there is a significant amount of off-label use.

Hospitals, physicians, and patients would not switch, and historically have not switched,
from Ig products to non-Ig products in response to a small but significant and non-transitory
increase in price (“SSNIP”).  Although Ig products differ somewhat (e.g., based on sucrose
levels, immunoglobulin A content, or concentration), ample evidence demonstrates that the
brands and products are largely interchangeable.  Grifols and Talecris account for approximately
8.4% and 22.8% of the U.S. Ig market, respectively, and their merger would leave three
manufacturers with nearly 100% of current U.S. Ig sales.
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ii. Albumin

Physicians use albumin to expand blood volume, prime heart valves during cardiac
surgery, treat burn victims, and replace proteins in treating liver failure.  In the United States, the
parties compete in the sale of two different albumin concentrations:  5% and 25% liquid.  The
5% and 25% concentrations have different clinical uses, but if a 5% product is unavailable,
hospitals can dilute a 25% product to a 5% concentration if necessary.  On the manufacturing
side, there are no significant costs associated with shifting production between 5% and 25%
albumin, and manufacturers can make such changes in a matter of days.  Because competitive
conditions – including the number and identity of suppliers – for 5% and 25% albumin solutions
are the same, it is appropriate to analyze albumin as a single market comprising both 5% and
25% products. 

In most circumstances where it is used, albumin has no viable substitutes.  While starches
and salines can act as volume expanders like 5% albumin, those non-albumin products cannot
substitute for albumin in the great majority of uses and do not meaningfully constrain albumin
prices and, hence, are not included in the relevant product market.  Even for those few
indications for which there might be a potential alternative therapy, hospitals generally prefer
albumin and would not switch from albumin to another product in response to a SSNIP.  Grifols
and Talecris have U.S. albumin market shares of approximately 13% each, and the Acquisition
would leave only four meaningful competitors in that market.

iii. pdFVIII 

Physicians use pdFVIII to treat bleeding disorders, namely Hemophilia A and von
Willebrand Disease (“VWD”).  While both pdFVIII and its non-plasma counterpart, recombinant
Factor VIII (“rFVIII”), can be used to treat Hemophilia A, rFVIII and pdFVIII have limited
interchangeability and, hence, limited ability to constrain each other’s prices.  For instance,
although rFVIII is the standard of care for previously untreated patients with Hemophilia A (due
to the perception that pdFVIII carries an increased risk of viral transmission), evidence suggests
that patients using rFVIII are more likely to develop inhibitors – antibodies that impede the
treatment’s effectiveness.  Thus, for some Hemophilia A patients, pdFVIII is the only viable
treatment.  Likewise, patients with severe VWD are treated with pdFVIII products containing
von Willebrand Factor (“VWF”).  No recombinant products contain VWF, so those patients also
may have no choice but to use pdFVIII. 

Clinical considerations, not price, determine whether a particular patient is given pdFVIII
or rFVIII, and hospitals would not switch from pdFVIII to rFVIII in response to an increase in
the price of pdFVIII.  Grifols and Talecris account for approximately 23% and 3.6% of the U.S.
pdFVIII market, respectively, and their merger would leave only three meaningful competitors
in that market.
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IV.  Industry Background and the Acquisition’s Effects

A decade ago, there was robust competition in the plasma-derived products industry. 
After supply increases in the early 2000s led to lower prices, suppliers reduced production and
plasma collection capacity and began to vertically integrate, placing plasma collection almost
entirely in the control of the few remaining firms in the market.  Manufacturers also engaged in
horizontal consolidation, leading to an industry dominated by three large firms, including
Talecris.  In the years that followed that consolidation, the Ig market in particular experienced a
tightening of supply and dramatic year-over-year price increases.  

The relevant markets have characteristics that allow manufacturers to promote stability
and rational, coordinated behavior.  First, the markets are transparent, with firms monitoring
each other’s collections, output, pricing, and future expansion plans.  Second, firms have
engaged in signaling to limit supply levels and maintain higher prices.  Third, if a firm were to
“break ranks” from a coordinated scheme, the other manufacturers can detect any “cheating”
over the course of the long manufacturing period and inflict punishment in other geographic
markets.  Fourth, the relevant markets are characterized by highly inelastic demand, increasing
the firms’ incentives to coordinate because even a small change in supply can have a large effect
on price.

The Acquisition would substantially lessen competition in the relevant markets.  It would
eliminate actual, direct, and substantial competition between Grifols and Talecris.  Moreover,
given that each of the relevant markets already is highly concentrated, the Acquisition would
facilitate successful coordinated interaction among the few remaining meaningful competitors,
leading to reduced supply and higher prices for consumers.  In addition, the Acquisition
increases the likelihood that consumers would experience lower levels of innovation and service
in the markets for the Relevant Products.

V.  Entry Conditions

 Neither new entry nor expansion sufficient to deter or counteract the Acquisition’s
anticompetitive effects is likely to occur within two years.  The barriers to entering the plasma
fractionation industry are extraordinary, with costs reaching hundreds of millions of dollars. 
Indeed, the barriers are so immense that de novo entry is unrealistic in less than five years.  For
example, an entrant must develop a product and secure all necessary regulatory approvals, with
the required clinical trials alone taking up to three years.  Additionally, the time and capital
investment required to build and obtain regulatory clearance for a fractionation facility are
significant, taking four to eight years and costing $100 million or more.  Finally, entrants must
navigate a substantial body of intellectual property in the field, including trade secrets relating to
purification and safety, and must incur substantial product research and development costs
before bringing a product to market.  Accordingly, new entry by a domestic or foreign firm
would not be timely, likely, or sufficient to counteract the Acquisition’s anticompetitive effects.  
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VI.  The Consent Agreement

The proposed Consent Agreement requires Grifols to divest certain assets to Kedrion and
take other actions to alleviate the Acquisition’s effects.  In particular, the Consent Agreement
expedites the entry of an additional competitor into each of the relevant markets, making a
potential industry-wide coordinated scheme more difficult, and limiting the combined firm’s
ability to raise prices.

Kedrion possesses the resources and ability to be an effective competitor and meaningful
constraint on any potential coordination in the industry.  Created in 2001, Kedrion is the seventh
largest fractionator in the world.  Specializing in the development, production, and distribution
of plasma-derived products, Kedrion actively sells plasma-derived products in more than 30
countries.  Kedrion currently sells IVIG in a number of European and other markets and has
started the process for FDA approval of its own IVIG product for sale in the United States. 
Kedrion also expects final FDA approval to sell a new albumin product in the United States in
2011.  It currently operates two plants in Italy and is nearing completion of an expansion to its
manufacturing facility in Godollo, Hungary.  

Under the Consent Agreement, Grifols will enter into a sale-and-leaseback agreement
with Kedrion for Talecris’ Melville fractionation facility.  Specifically, Kedrion will acquire the
Melville facility and lease it back to Grifols for three to four years to ensure continuity of
operations; at the end of the lease term, Kedrion can assume Melville operations and fractionate
its own plasma.  Additionally, Grifols will divest to Kedrion plasma collection centers and sell
Kedrion an initial supply of raw plasma, ensuring that Kedrion will have an independent and
reliable source of raw plasma. 

In addition, Grifols will manufacture and supply Kedrion with FDA-approved and
established IVIG, albumin, and pdFVIII products.  Kedrion will market and sell private-label
versions of Talecris’ Gamunex IVIG and Plasbumin albumin for a period of seven years.  And
Grifols will transfer to Kedrion all commercial agreements and rights to sell Koate pdFVIII in
the U.S. market, making Kedrion the sole provider of Koate in the United States.  Kedrion will
also have the option to purchase the rights to manufacture Koate for sale in the United States. 

Through the Consent Agreement, Kedrion will have immediate market access and the
ability to supply customers with established products in all three product markets.  Kedrion’s
presence in the U.S. market will add incremental supply of these life-saving products while still
allowing the combined firm to take full advantage of the Acquisition’s expected efficiencies.  In
addition, Kedrion will also have the opportunity to hire Grifols and Talecris employees to
facilitate its entry and ensure continuity in the manufacture and sale of its products.  By
eliminating many of the industry’s immense barriers to entry, the Consent Agreement will
facilitate Kedrion’s current and future entry with its own IVIG and albumin products and
position Kedrion to replace the competition lost as a result of the Acquisition.

To ensure that the Commission remains informed about the status of the proposed
divestitures, the Consent Agreement also requires the parties to file periodic reports with the
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Commission until the divestitures are accomplished.  Furthermore, the OMA requires that the
parties maintain all assets scheduled to transfer to Kedrion and authorizes the Commission to
appoint a monitor to oversee the various agreements between Kedrion and Grifols.  Under the
OMA, Grifols and Talecris must maintain the full economic viability, marketability, and
competitiveness of the proposed divested business and assets.  This includes, among other
things, retaining all rights, title, and interest in the divested assets, maintaining operations in
their regular course, and not interfering in Kedrion’s hiring of designated Grifols and Talecris
employees.  If Grifols does not comply with the OMA or any of the Consent Agreement’s other
terms, the Commission may appoint a divestiture trustee to divest the assets and enter into a
product manufacturing agreement with a Commission-approved acquirer.  

The purpose of this analysis is to facilitate public comment on the Consent Agreement. 
It is not intended to constitute an official interpretation of the proposed Decision and Order or to
modify its terms in any way.   
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